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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Trustees of The Mercian Trust (“the Trust") present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements and auditor's report of the Trust for the year ended 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a trustees' report and-a directors’ report under company law:

The Mercian Trust multi academy trust operates 6 academies across Walsall, including 4 x 11-19 academies, a
14-19 Studio School and an 11-19 Alternative Provision Free School.

The schools in the Trust are:

Aldridge School

Queen Mary's Grammar School
Queen Mary's High School
Shire Oak Academy

‘Walsall Studio School

‘The Ladder School, Walsall

The Trust has a combined pupil capacity of 5,680 and had a roll of 5,394 in the school census on 1 October
2020.

Structure, governance and management
a. Constitution

The Trust js a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's articles of
association are the primary- govemning documents of the Trust, and with the formation of the multi academy trust
on 1 January 2018, new articles were adopted then, which were approved by the Secretary of State for
Education. These provided for five members as follows:

. Queen Mary's Schools Foundation
. Two persons appointed by Queen Mary's Schools Foundation
.- Vine Trust Walsall

. One person appointed by Vine Trust Walsall

The Trust is governed by the Trustees who:are appointed as follows:

. Two trustees appointed by the members
. Three trustees appointed by the Foundation
. Two trustees appointed by Vine Trust Walsall

In addition, the Trustees may co-opt additional trustees with the consent of-a majority of the members.

The above appointees act as trustees for the charitable activities of the Trust and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finance Officer attend meetings, but they are not Trustees..

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member. .
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A .Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)
c. Trustees’ indemnities
The Trust and its schools are members of the Academies’ Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), a Government

backed compensation scheme offered by the ESFA to Academies. The Trustees consider that the RPA offers
sufficient compensation to cover the appropriate risks of the Trust as well-as good value for money.

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Board of Trustees had consisted of ten Trustees at the start of this period. Two were appointed by the
members of the company, three appointed by the Queen Mary’s Schools Foundation, two by Vine Trust Walsall.

Three were co-opted by trustees.

One Trustee. retired during the period from September 2019 and July 2020. A new Trustee was co-opted during
the same period leaving ten Trustees at the end of the year.

The Foundation is a ¢haritable organisation with a board of trustees comprising governors from three schools
(Queen Mary's Grammar School, Queen Mary’s High School and Mayfield Preparatory School), and additional
trustees with connections to the schools aithough not employed by them.

The Vine Trust, Walsall is a registered charity which works in Walsall and other Black Country boroughs
engaged in economic, environmental and social regeneration.

e. Policles adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The Chair and the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) are responsible for the induction of new Trustees. The
Executive Team and the Clerk provide them with induction information including details of the Trustees, minutes
of previous meetings, the Trust's strategic plan, and details of how to obtain further information about governor
responsibility (e.g., the National Governance Association and Gov.uk websites). New Trustees meet with other
senior leaders within the Trust most appropriate to their experience and areas of responsibility.

A review of skills audits, completed annually, inform a programme of bespoke training in-year. Training is
providing online and special events are set up to meet particular needs. Areas covered include safeguarding and
GDPR. Trustées aiso have the opportunlty to attend formal governor training sessions held by Walsall Local
Authority, as well as access to the Walsall Association of Governors.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, «gover'nance and management (continued)

f. Organisational structure
The Board of Trustees operated with two principal sub-committees: The Business, Audit and Risk Committee:

(BAR) and the Achievement; Inclusion, Social Mobility and Safeguarding Committee (AIMS). These committees

provide robust oversight of the Trust's work to ensure financial probity, the highest standards of governance,
educational standards and outcomes for students. Work to create separate committees for finance and
resources, and Audit and Risk took place throughout the year. The new committees were approved together with

their membership in July 2020.

Each school within the Trust maintains a Local Governing Body (LGB). These are appointed by the Trustees and
are special sub-committees of the Trust. A trust document, Rhythms of the. Year, sets out the timing and
agendas for each LGB meeting and LGB Chairs are supporting by the Trust to hold school leaders to account for
the -educational standards and school improvement in each school. Communication between LGB Chairs,
Trustees and the Trust Executive is maintained through Keeping in Touch (KIT) forums which include the
sharing of best practice, alongside training and support.

Other panels are convened as required for dealing with matters of staffing, pupil discipline and appeals from
these, and also a panel to deal with complaints that could not be resolved interrially. The Clerk to the Board of
Trustees has a remit to convene these panels as and when required from eligible Trustees.

Responsibility for day-to-day leadership and management of the Trust is devolved to the CEO, senior leaders in
the Central Team and the Headteachers from each of the Trust's six schools. investment in the structures and
systems of the Trust's central team has built capacity and increased the capability of the Trust to enable
successful schools including an Executive Director for Education, a Director of School improvement and a

Director of Social Mobility.
During the year the MAT Executive Team including Headteachers held meetings approximately every three
weeks fo discuss all aspects of the Trust's work. From these meetings come recommendations for action which

are considered by Trustees. Where a course of action requires significant expenditure (capital projects, staffing,
etc.) or more detailed scrutiny of educational impact, they refér decision through the appropriate committee.

The CEO is the Accounting Officer of the Trust.

The Trust used the services of the Clerk to the Foundation during the course of the year.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company'Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Pay policy for key management personnel

All of the Trustees carry eut their work for the Trust on a pro bono basis but they. have overall responsibility for
setting the Trust's pay policy and reviewing the remuneration of senior management within the Trust.

The Trustees have established a separate Pay Committee to. oversee this process; which comprises a majority
of Trustees. This Committee has delegated responsibility for reviewing pay proposals for staff and senior
management.

The Pay Committee receives recommendations from each of the LGB's regarding performance management
and pay for teaching staff and for school senior leadership teams. The CEO presents the recommendations for
Headteachers and for the Trust central team.

The Committee also appoints an independent adviser, usually a Chief Executive from another multi academy
trust, or a senior figure in the sector to review the performance of the CEO and advise on recommendations of
other key senior management where appropriate.

I setting Exectitive Pay for senior leaders, including the CEO and headteachers, trustees considered pay across
the Trust and the responsibilities of system leaders and followed the guidance published by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency.

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year 9
Fulltime equivalent employee number 9

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees

0% 6

1%-50% 3

51%-99% s

100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £

Total:cost of facility time. 66,541

Total pay bill 25,096,819

Percentage.of total pay bill spent on facility time - %.

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid ‘trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time - %
hours
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

‘Structure, governance and management (continued)

i. Connected organisations, including related party transactions

The Trust maintains a register of Business Interests, including details of refated paities, so as to identify potential
conflicts of interest, if any. In the unlikely event of a potential conflict of interest, this enables the Trustees to
manage the matter in the most appropriate way. In addition, all agendas for meetings (including Committee
meetings) have "Declarations of Interest” as a standing item. Similar registers are maintained by each of the
schools within The Trust and agendas of the meetings of the LGBs also have “Declarations of Interest” as a

standing item.

Trustees receive no payment for their services but may in limited circumstances be reimbursed for out-of-pocket
expenses incurred wholly and exclusively on behalf of the Trust's business.

Recruitment of staff who may be connected to Trustees is conducted in accordance with the Trust's recruitment
policies and procedures and with the connected trustee having no vote or influence over such appointment.

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local

public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees
have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the AFH and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures
relating to connected and related party transactions. The Trust has identified a number of related parties as set

out below:

The Foundation

Vine Trust Walsall

PTP Training Ltd

Farchynys Estate Management Ltd
Queen Mary's Association

e o o o o

PTP Training Ltd ceased to be a related party on 4 May 2020. Details of the financial value of transactions are
included in note 30 of the notes to the financial statements. All transactions incurred by the Trust were charged
at cost and in accordance with the Academies Financial Handbook.

Queen Mary's Schools Foundation

Thé Foundation is a charitable trust and holds on trust, as a perpetual endowment, funds donated and
investments made over the years since the. founding of the School by the letters patent of Queen Mary in 1554,
and subsequently the founding of Queen Mary's High School (for girls) and Mayfield Preparatory School. The
endowment is used:

. To provide the above schools with benefits including funding of any kind as may be agreed from time to
time between the governing bodies of the Foundation and the schools
. To promote the education of pupils of the schools it supports who may be in need of financial assistance

The Foundation is able to appoint members and Trustees of the Trust, as described above. The Trust has not
made any payments during the year to the Foundation.

During the year the Trust has received income in the form of donations from The Foundation relating to running
the entrance tests for Queen Mary's Grammar School and Queen Mary's High School, as well as donations from
parents for enrichment activities. The Foundation has also provided the services of a Clerk to the Governors of
Queen Mary's Grammar School and Queen Mary's High School at no-cost to the Trust.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

The Foundation owns the freehold land on which both Queen Mary’s school sites are based. These are let at a
peppercorn rental to the Trust under a 125-year lease for the main sites and 10 year leases for their playing
fields, also at a peppercorn rent

Vine Trust Walsail

Vine Trust Walsall is a charitable Trust that is actively engaged in economic and social regeneration. The Trust
is structured to run an inclusive mix of services and facilities, which respond to the needs of the. communities it
serves, with a Christian Ethos as the cornerstone. Vine Trust Walsall is a related party as it can appoint
members and Trustees of the trust as described in the Trustees report.

Vine Trust was instrumental in founding Walsall Studio School including providing buildings in which the school
operates.. Initially the school operated from the ground and second floors of the Goldmine Centre. This was
subject to a 125-year lease at a psppercorn rental, approved by the ESFA when the school was founded in 2013.
In September 2019 the ESFA acquired the Goldmine Centre from Vine Trust Walsall as part of the DFE's
development of the surrounding site in order to create a new St. Matthew's Learning Campus including an
extension to the Goldmine Building for Walsall Studio School and a permanent building for The Ladder School
(the Trust's Alternative Provision Free School). The Trust entered into a new 125-year lease with the Secretary
of State for Communities and Local Government in respect of the Goldmine Centre.

Vine Trust Walsall has provided catering provision to students at Walsall Studio School during the year.

PTP Training Ltd (PTP)

Based in Walsall, PTP has been providing training to companies and schools thought the Midlands for over 40
years. PTP was graded as 'Outstanding’ by Ofsted for partnership engagement. PTP offer a ‘wide range of
services including:

. Apprenticeships support for employers on how to make the most of the apprenticeship levy/funding
. Traineeships through a variety of skills
. Support for schools, including careers guidance, vocational qualifications and training for staff.

PTP is a subsidiary of Walsall Business Services Ltd a company limited by guarantee (formery known as The
East Mercia Chamber of Commerce and industry and Walsall Chamber of Commerce. Until 4th May 2020 a
member of the Trust was a member of Walsall Business Services and director of both Walsall Business
Services and PTP. A trustee of the Trust was also a director of PTP until 4th May 2020.

All apprenticeship training providers are approved by the ESFA, which determines a maximum cap that can be
funded. PTP charges the Trust for this service in accordance with the rates approved by the ESFA and this is
paid from the Trust's levy account. ‘

PTP Training limited ceased to be a related party on 4 May 2020 when the company was acquired by Black
Country Training Group.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)
Farchynys Estate Management Ltd (“FEML").

In 1965 a groiip of old boys of Queen Mary's Grammar School :acquired a property at Farchynys Hall, near
Barmouth in Wales, to provide boys from the school with the opportunity to benefit from outward bound activities
-at a residential centre. This property, the Coach House, is owned by four trustees, appointed by Queen Mary's
Old Boys' Club. The facility is made available to the school and to schools in The Trust. With recent expansion at
Queen Mary's Grammar School, the centre became outgrown. As a result, The Foundation, and the Queen
Mary's (Old Boys’) Club Scholarship Fund (“OBSF), a linked charity of the Foundation, agreed to raise funds to
acquire two additional buildings on an adjacent site. Thanks to generosity of old boys these were acquired in
2015. The Barn was acquired by The Foundation and is made available for the school's use. To provide greater
control over the site, the adjacent Cottage was acquired by the OBSF as an investment for that charity.

The properties are owned by these separate bodies, but to manage the estate more effectively, it was agreed to
establish a separate legal entity, Farchynys Estate Management Ltd. This company manages and pays for the
maintenance of the properties, and manages the letting agent for the Cottage.

The objective of establishing FEML is-to continue to provide the Trust with a fantastic residential centre, at
minimal cost to encourage greater utilisation by pupils within the Trust. The Trust charges parents for board and
lodging on the residential trips and pays these fees to FEML for the use of the Coach House and the Barn. The
charges are at cost and in accordance with Academies Financial Handbook.

Queen Mary's Association (“QMA”)

The School relies on, and is very grateful for, the goedwill and support of parents of pupils at the School, as well
as alumni and their families. Queen Mary's Association is a registered charity which was formed by parents to
raise funds for the benefit of Queen Mary's Grammar School.

j- Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Employees are enabled to share their views throughout the year. Staff have been consulted on issues of interest
and concern to them by means of an annual staff survey, regular consultative committees -and staff meetings.
They have been kept informed on specific matters -directly by management including informal briefings and
meéting ‘with the CEO. The use of online surveys, email communication and video briefings have increased
throughout the year and provides the executive team and the board of trustees with the views of staff in each
school and central team. The Trust carries out exit interviews for all staff leaving the organisation and has
adopted a procedure of upward feedback for senior management and Trustees.

As one employer, the Trust has implemented a full suite of detailed HR policies in each school. Trust-wide -
policies also include: Equal Opportunities Policy, Voliinteers' Policy, Health & Safety Policy.

In accordance with the Trust's. equal opportunities policy, the Trust has long-established fair employment
practices in the recruitment, selection, retention and training of disabled staff.

Full details of these policies are available from the Trust's offices.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

k. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

The Trust engages. with suppliers and customers effectively through transparent procurement practices and
ongoirig dialogue with suppliers and potential vendors, The Trust has reviewed procurement procedures during
2019-20 and a new Procurement Policy that sets out how the Trust will engage with suppliers has been adopted
for 2020-21. During the Covid-19 pandemic lockdown, the Trust worked with all of its suppliers in line with the
PPN 02/20 and 04/20 to provide supplier relief, ensuring contractors were paid in full and on time - for example
the Trust has provided support to suppliers, particularly in the case of small local businesses, by negotiating
payment in line with pre-existing contracts during lockdown while deferring the delivery of these services until the

schools returned in September 2020.
Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims

The Trust's mission is to increase opportunities and improve outcomes for students by providing the best
education and life chances for the children and young peopté of Walsall and the surrounding areas.

The Trust brings together a family of schools committed to each other; different schools serving a wide range of
individual needs working as one charitable trust to offer the broadest and best education to all pupils regardless
of their socio-economic, cultural or ethnic background.

Leveraging the strengths of the participating schools, students of The Mercian Trust are able to access the
advantages and opportunities that each school brings — in teaching, leadership, breadth of curriculum, facilities,
enrichment activities and community engagement.

The common purpose of Trust schools are summarised in the Trust's vision and mission statements.
Vision statement:

We exist to equip our students to live life to the full.
Mission statement:

Increasing opportunities and improving outcomes to enable our students to:

. Realise their potential
. Thrive in the world of work » _
. Make a positive contribution to the local, national and international community.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Obijectives and activities (continued)

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The. Trust updated its 'strategic plan in-year to sét priorities for 2020-2025. The updated plan re-articulates the
Trust's commitment to social mobility and work to: transform the: life chances of students and the communities
served by trust schools.

The plan identifies the Trust work in each of the five arenas of influence and accountability and is accompanied
by detailed planning related to the Trust's response to COVID-19 in each arena:

School improvement and Innovation

Developing People, Culture and Talent

The Business of Education (Sustainability and Growth)
Governance, Risk and Compliance

Strategic Relationships and Partnerships

The strategic plan builds upon the Trust's values and common recognisable characteristics:

. Excellence and rigour
. Challenge and support

. Safety and well-being

. Acceptance and applause

Purpose-driven
Partnership working
Professionalism
Positivity
Pioneering Spirit

e e s o

The key objectives for this year set out in the annual report of the Trustees for the year ended 31 August 2019
are listed below. They did not include the significant objectives for the Trust that developed in-year as a result of

COVID-19 and the substantive closure of schools.

Strategy

. Embedding and accelerating the Trust's updated strategic plan and priorities as articulated by Trustees
and the new CEO

. Impleménting an updated plan for strategic.relationships and growth

Bu:lding Capacity to Accelerate School Improvement
Strengthening and developing the Trust's school improvement offer and central team for the Quality of

Education

. Developing and Implementing appropriate systems and platforms to analyse data / intelligence quickly
and allocating appropriate and effective resources in-year

. Increasing opportunities and improving outcomes for students: (including disadvantaged students and

those with SEND) in alf Trust schools, particularly those where the quality of education is not yet judged
Good or where progress measures are. not yét in line with national averages
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantée)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED:31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives:and activities (contintied)

Systems, ‘Structures and Growth

C.

Establishing and sustaining The Ladder School with sufficient students on roll and supporting the school
éffectively in preparation for its first inspection

‘Successfully managing capital build projects in each of the Trust's schools
Establishing and further developing an effective.business support central team to provide efficient and

professional business: support
Ensuring the new centralised finance operations team is effective
Ensuring a figorous and professional approach to business and curriculum planning is further developed

Public benefit

The Trust is mindful of the guidance on public benefit issued by the Charity Commission, and the requirements
to comply with current legislation. The Trustees ‘are committed to ensuring access to Trust schools; of all
candidates of whatever background. The Trust's schools will continue.to provide education to children and young

people that;

. Is balanced and broadly based

. Provides the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical development of all students

. Prepares students for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life

. Promotes, sustains and increases individual and collective knowledge and understanding of specific

areas of study, skills and expertise
Works in partnership with others in order to share enthusiasm, experience and expertise as widely as
possible in the Borough and beyond, not least to promote social mobility:among disadvantaged children
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

- TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED):
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Achievements and performance

There are 5,394 students in Trust schools.

One school in the Trust, Walsall Studio School, was inspected by Ofsted this year. The overall effectiveness of
Walsall Studio Schoo! was judged to be GOOD following a full section 5 inspectiori.. The inspection report,
published 22nd October 2020, noted that the studio schoo! was set up in 2013 with the aim of promoting
vocational learning in. a small, professional setting and aimed to be part of regenerating the local community.
Many staff and governors who set up the school up are still present, and they have been successful in achieving
this vision since the school opened.

Inspectors also noted that: thé school is well led. The staff form a united team who are proud to work there.
They value the support and guidance that leaders give them. Governors are committed to the school. They carry
out their duties diligently. The Mercian Trust provides much helpful support for the school.

There were no examinations in the summer of 2020 due to COVID-19.

Students. were allocated Centre Assessed Grades (GAGs) at the end of KS5 and end of KS4 foliowing a period
of turbulence with nationally moderated Calculated Grades that for some students were awarded and
subsequently withdrawn. Turbulence in relation to CAGs and in particular university admissions, placed school
leaders, staff; students and their families under considerable. pressure. throughout the: summer of 2020 and
through the start of term in September. The Trust moderated CAGs robustly in line with the guidance provided by
the DFE, Ofqual and individual awarding bodies and followed the guidance of regulators explicitly regarding
appeals and subject access requests received under the General Data Protection Regulation (EU GDPR)
legislation.

The Government will not publish any schoo! or college level educational performance data based on tests,
assessments or exains for 2020. Student destinations (progression onto university or directly into work) offer
much to celebrate in each school, however, the details of students’ achievements based on CAGs will not be
used to state or measure the performance of schools or multi academy trusts.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Achievements and performance (contifiued)

a. Key performance indicators

The Trustees sét rigorous performance indicators for academic: progress, which are reflected in performance
management objectives and success measures for each individual headteacher in the Trust. The Trust provided
extensive guidance to headteachers and local governing bodies to ensure the consistent implementation of
performance management appraisal reviews within the context of a school year severely disrupted by COVID-19.
The guidance, and accompanying training set out the practical steps from the following principles:

- Every member of staff should receive an assessment of their performance in the year 01 November
2019 — 31 October 2020.

. Both the STPCD and the Trust pay policy make clear that pay progression must relate to performance

. Pragmatic steps should be taken to adapt performance management appraisal, so that staff are not

disadvantaged or penalised as a result of substantive closure of schools in March 2020.

Whilst difficult to measure, the Trust aims to provide a broad education not just academic results, encouraging
extra-curricular activities such as performing arts, sports, clubs, UK/overseas trips, work experience, enterprise,
community and family-based activities. These are part of a curriculum that transforms lives. The Trust takes
pride in the fact that it is more than just a collection of schools. In a year when schools are fully open the Trust is
a flourishing community.

Throughout April 2020 — August 2020 the Trust worked with local and national charities to provide community
boxes to students and families who required food and other essential items. Schools identified newly
disadvantaged families who as a result of furlough or redundancy required support. Staff from each school and
the central team packed shopping bags and delivered food community boxes. Families in receipt of this support
were typically ineligible for the national Free School Meals voucher scheme. -

The Trust is grateful to the alumni and community partners (including Rackets Cubed, Fareshare, Black Country
Foodbank and The Vine Trust) who supported the Trust's work to provide food and essential items to those in
need in the summer and have continued to do so when schools reopened fully in September:2020.

As in any other year trustees monitored @ number of key performance indicators (KPI's) which affect
performance, including:

Student Outcomes at the end of each key stage and in-year (Attainment and Progress)

School Self-Assessment and Trust External Reviews and moderation activities

Government funding streams and other income levels

Student numbers — both for 11-16 and 16-19 (Sixth Form)

Staff numbers and curriculum provision through an Integrated Curriculum Financial Planning ICFP tool
Revenue surpluses

Capital projects income and spend

The board of trustees also monitor carefuily the. progress made on the Trust Strategic Plan.
Highlights from 2019-20 include:

. Growth and Social Mobility
(o] Increasing student recruitment and retention in the sixth form across the Trust
0 Increasing the numbers of Y7 students in QMGS and QMHS with significant increases in
disadvantaged students joining both schools following successful outreach programmes (part
of the Selective Schools Expansion Fund programme).
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Achievements and performance (continued)

. School Improvement (and Senior Staff Recruitment)
o Increasing the capacity and capability of the Trust school improvement team with the appointment

of an Executive Director for Education and a new Director of School Improvement.
o Providing a comprehensive range of teach-meets and other CPD for staff with daily live video
sessions after school throughout the period of substantive school closures.

(o] Compieting the successful recruitment of a new CFO.
o] Completing the successful recruitment of a new Headteacher for Shire Oak Academy.

. Systems and Structures to enable successful schools ‘
o Enhancing effective governance at all levels through the development of hew committees and

LGB Chairs’ forum
o Developing the business planning processes throughout the trust with an enhanced, integrated

approach to strategic planning, curriculum and staffing analysis (ICFP) and costed school
improvement priorities.

o Completing the roll out of the Trust's online School Evaluation platform (online SEF) with.real-time
access for school and trust leaders, governors and trustees.

(o] Ensuring the consistent implementation of HR processes and protocols throughout all schools

based on the approved suite of Trust HR policies.

. Developing the Trust's strategic relationships with other Multi Academy Trusts and with Birmingham
University (with opportunities for more staff to access to a Masters in Educational Leadership
programme).

b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
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Achievements and performance (continued)

¢. Promoting the success of the company

The Trustees have acted in accordance with their duties codified in law, which include their duty to act in the way
in which they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Trust / Company for the
benefit of its members, stakeholders and the matters set out in section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006. The
Charites Commission has issued guidance which explains that charitable companies should take “promoting the
success of the company” to mean “promoting the success of the charity to achieve its charitable purposes.” The
Mercian Trust is governed by its charitable objects. These charitable objects set out the purpose of the charity.
The consequences of all decisions and activities of the charity are assessed by how they drive us towards
achieving that long-term strategy and goals, including by reference to the charity's strategy, vision and values. As
an educational charity, we are accountable not only to our funders and diréct beneficiaries (our pupils) but also
our parents and wider community. These stakeholders support us, engage with us, and challenge us. They
ensure that the decisions we make are for their benefit. We are .a values driven organisation and our values
mean that we are informed, shaped and powered by our determination to uphold our vision and values. Well-
established involvement and consultation mechanisms, both direct (through parent and staff surveys) and
indirect (through the involvement of parents and local people on our Local Governing Bodies and Trust Board)
ensure that decisions made by the Trustees are informed by the needs of the organisation’s stakeholders.
Specifically:

. Trustees consider the consequences of any strategic decision in the long-term as part of their
assessment. We aim to ensure that as an organisation we balance our income and expenditure to ensure
that our organisation remains sustainable in the long term. This is balanced against the needs of our
pupils, staff and other stakeholders, and the community, to ensure we are spending the funding we
receive from the government in the most effective way to support our aims, and with integrity. This has
included, for example, decisions relating to the long-term impact of the growth of the Trust through the
expansions of QMGS and QMHS and through due diligence with potential growth partners.

. Details of how the Trustees give consideration to the interests of the organisation's employees can be
found in the section Engagement with employees within this report.

. The Trust fosters business relationships with suppliers, customers and others through effective
engagement and transparent working practices. The Trust also supported suppliers in line with PPN 02/20
by ensuring that suppliers at risk were continued to be paid as normal (even if service delivery was
disrupted or temporarily suspended) and put in payment measures to support supplier cash flow. One
principal example during 2019/20 has been the support the Trust has provided to small local businesses,
by negotiating payment in line with pre-existing contracts during lockdown while deferring the delivery of
these services until the schools returned in September 2020.

. Details of how the Trustees give consideration to the impact on the community can be found in the
section Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust.
Further information is also given in the section on Public Benefit. An example of how the Trust has
considered its impact on the local community has been during the COVID-19 crisis, where a decision was
made to supply supermarket vouchers to families normally in receipt of free school meals, ahead of the
government introducing a national scheme. Furthermore, the work of the Trust with local and national
charities to provide food and essential items to families ineligible for FSM vouchers but identifies as
newly disadvantaged families. The Trust has also worked to ensure the schools remained open during
holiday periods to support support key workers and vulnerable children within the local community during
the COVID lockdown when other childcare options were not necessarily available.
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Achievemerits and performance (continued)

. The Trust aims to conduct all its relationships with integrity. The Trustees have approved a number of
policies that help to ensure the charity maintains high standards of business conduct; these include the
Investment Policy, Anti Fraud and Whistleblowing Policy, and Gifts and Hospitality Policy.

. All members of the Trust are treated fairly and equally, with the same access to information, the ability to
directly contact trustees or the Executive, and being invited to participate in training or strategic
development events; for example, all Members were invited to participate in our recent Trust Strategy

Day.

All matters reserved for decision by the Trustees are presented at Board or Committee meetings as
appropriate. Trustees are briefed on any identified potential impacts and risks for our stakeholders and
how they are to be managed. The Trustees take these factors into account before making a final decision
which together they believe is in the best interests of the Trust and its stakeholders.

Financial Review

Most of the Trust's income comprises the General Annual Grant (GAG) from the DfE, which is restricted in use in
furthering the objects of the Trust. GAG and the associated expenditure are therefore shown as restricted
general funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

As well as its annual allocation of School Condition Allocation (SCA) and Devolved Formula Capital grant, the

Trust received capital grants from:

. Selective Schools Expansion Funding for Queen Mary's Grammar School and Queen Mary's High
School

. Additional SCA capital grant announced by the Prime Minister in 2020.
Work has commenced on the two SSEF expansion projects at the Queen Mary sites. The project to
expand QMGS is well underway and on target for completion by the end of the 2020-21 academic year.
Due to delays relating to Covid 19 and site constraints, including limitations arising from English Heritage,
the expansion project at QMHS has incurred a delayed start and additional costs have ensued relating to
temporary accommodation and increased design and build costs. These additional costs have been
undenwritten by Trustees from Trust reserves.

A new, permanent school building for The Ladder School (Alternative Provision Free School) is being funded and
delivered by the DfE in the town centre. The development of the St Matthew's Campus will also provide an
extension/additional building for Walsall Studio School. The new school buildings were originally planned for
completion in September 2020 but are now unlikely to be completed until March 2022. TLS is currently funded
based on estimated numbers agreed with the DFE and ESFA as part of the application and pre-opening
business planning process for new free schools. 2020-21 is the final year of this confirmed approach to funding
for the school, however, given the space available in the temporary accommodation provided by the DFE Free
Schools Capital Team, TLS is unable to grow to the size required to be financially viable using the funding
methodology for established AP free schools in their permanent buildings. Unless an extended place funding
agreement can be agreed with the DFE then the short-term financial viability of TLS is at risk from 2021-22.

The Trust has a priority on increasing pupil numbers to drive economies of scale and reducing and effectively
managing costs. Pupil numbers increased in September 2019 and again in September 2020. The Trust has
continued to promote a cross school approach to sixth form recruitment and curriculum and is sharing teaching
in selected subjects in a “MAT block”. As a result of Integrated Curriculum Planning, all of the Trust's schools
have reviewed the provision of education in ages 11 to 16 to improve efficiency without affecting quality of
teaching and other schools have increased sharing of resources. The Trust has successfully tendered for a
number of trust wide contracts during the year benefitting from pooling resources and increased buying power.
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Achievements and performance (continued)

The Trust has carefully managed its finances during the year. Excluding the effects of the pension accounting, a
surplus of £54,000 was budgeted, which included a significant amount of investment from reserves into the
Trust's estate. However, the Trust took the decision to pay West Midlands Pension Fund - LGPS pension costs
up front for 3 years in order to benefit from early payment discounts; the total paid in 2019-20 was £840,510.
Some of this unbudgeted cost has been offset in-year due to reduced spending driven by effective financial
management and delays in planned investments caused by the Covid-19 pandemic. The final result for the year
was an overall deficit of £397,944, which was funded from prior year revenue reserves. The upfront LGPS
payments will be recovered from delegated budgets during 2020-21 and 2022-23 as the costs pertaining to these
years have been paid in advance, This is set out in the table below:

Unrestricted|Restricted Fixed
. . Revenue] Pension Total
Reserves analysis Revenue] Revenue asset
Reserves| Reserve Reserves
Reserve| Reserve Reserve
Exc Exc

pension] pension
reservel reserve

£ £ £ £ £ £
Net income / i
expenditure before
other recognised 209,224| (607,167){ (397,943)(2,083,000)| (660,519)(3,141,462)
losses

Depreciation / amortisation charges of £1,729,556 were included in the Statement Of Financial Activities (2019:
£1,706,485). This reflects charges from investment in the estate and other fixed assets during 2019 and 2020.

A review of the valuation of the LGPS pension plans has been carried out by actuaries, Bamett Waddingham as
at 31 August 2020. The overall net deficit of the Trust's pension arrangements within the LGPS has increased to
£13,594,000(2019: £11,511,000).

After charging a further actuarial loss on LGPS pension schemes of £2,031,000 (2019: loss of £1,577,000) the
overall net movement in funds was a net decrease of £3,141,462 (2019: net decrease of £770,324).

a. Reserves policy

The Trustees have agreed a reserves policy which recognises ongoing spending plans need to closely match
funding. They recognise there are risks and uncertainties, which may lead to unexpected costs and there may be
a need to fund capital projects. The Trustees consider it good practice to maintain a minimum level of 5% of
GAG as reserves to cater for such items, while balancing this with a need not to hold onto excessive reserves.
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Revenue reserves

The free revenue reserves of the five founding academies at the date of formation of the MAT in January 2018
were £4,947,000. At 31 August 2020, total revenue reserves were £3,610,333 of which, restricted revenue
reserves were £1,258,015 (2019: £1,865,182) and unrestricted reseives were £2,352,318 (2019: £2,143,094).
Included in restricted revenue reserves was a sports restricted reserve of £159,984 (2019: £254,138) which is
required to be reinvested in sports projects following the sale of playing fields at Aldridge School during 2018.

Since inception in January 2018, the Trust has invested reserves to support capital works and other priority
investment areas in line with the Trust's strategic and school improvement priorities. Trustees have already
approved and earmarked the use of £2.2m of reserves for 2020-21 to support expansion projects, building
improvement works, digital transformation, wellbeing and the development of ¢entral services.

In addition to amounts reserved for specific capital or ongoing projects the Trustees believe it is appropriate to
maintain a level of free revenue reserves of at least 5% of recurring grant income to cater for risks and
uncertainties, unexpected costs or shortfalls in income; working capital needs and the potential need for further
capital investment. Excluding reserves earmarked for strategic priority investments, such reserves were
£3,610,333 at 31 August 2020 or 13% of GAG (2019: £3,754,138 or 15% of GAG). However, if adjusted for the
earmarked £2.2m priority investment projects, the free revenue reserves level is 5.2% of GAG.

Pension Reserve

The defined benefit scheme reserve has a deficit balance, the effect of which is the MAT pays higher employer
contributions over a period of years. These are met from future income. While the deficit will not be eliminated in

the short term, there should be no direct impact on free revenue reserves.

Fixed Asset Reserve

The fixed asset reserve fund reflects funding received for assets of a capital nature, less accumulated
depreciation. Capital funding is received from the ESFA from time to time, but may not be sufficient to cover all
capital needs and the Trust may therefore be required to fund expenditure out of its free revenue reserves. In the
unlikely event of a disposal of a specific academy’s land & buildings (subject to approval by the Secretary of
State for Education), the Trustees have agreed that proceeds would be reinvested in the academy to which

these assets relate (unless otherwise directed by the Secretary of State).

b. Investment policy

The Board of Trustees is responsible for setting investment policy. The day-to-day responsibility for managing
this function is delegated to the Trust's CFO in consultation with the individual schools and taking into account

the returns from interest rates compared to cash requirements.

In view of current low interest rates, and the major capital projects being undertaken across thie Trust most funds
were held in current accounts at year-end.
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c. Principal risks and uncertainties
Risk Management

The Trust has a duty to identify and review significant risks and to ensure that there are adequate controls over
these risks to provide reasonable assurance to the Trustees that risks are being managed and mitigated.

The Trustees have assessed the main areas of risk, which the Trust faces and these aré documented in the risk
register. The main headings in the register are:

Strategic

Educational Standards
Public Profile
Compliance

Finance

Systems
Safeguarding

Health and safety
Personnel

¢ 6 o e ¢ i & o o

The Trustees have overall responsibility for risk management and choose to delegate management of these
matters to the relevant committees and, in turn, to the CEO and the Executive team. Policies and control
procedures have been put into place to cover all the above-mentioned areas of risk.

Although the Trust is secure in its financial strength and educational standards, the financial impact of COVID-19
on Trust schools and the educational impact of COVID-19 on the outcomes for students is an unprecedented
risk for the Trust. All COVID associated risks together with the relief and recovery actions required (post-
COVID-19) are documented and reviewed regularly by the executive team and the LGB in each school.

Additional risks of note include the following:

Strategic Risk(s)
. Our ambition for growth exceeds our organisational capacity to ‘enable successful schools’
. Outstanding Ofsted inspection judgements :are not maintained, and The: Ladder School does not

secure a Good or better judgment in its first inspection

To address this risk and other strategic risks identified throughout the year, trustees have established processes
to ensure:

. There is a clear strategic plan with criteria for growth and an appropriate scheme of delegation in place

. The Trust central team provides robust processes and reporting to monitor educational standards and
financial health of each school within the trust.

. Good communication, including regular meetings for Headteachers with each of the executive leaders of
the Trust (CEO, CFO, Executive Director for Education).

. Experienced resources to support the Trust drawn from Trustees, a ¢entral Trust team and senicr leaders

in the schools within the Trust.

Operational Risk(s)

. Our schools fail to access the benefits of being one charitable trust because our operating model remains
excessively single-school focussed — and where functions are centralised they do not yet provide-a
sufficiently high quality service.
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To address this risk and other operational risks identified throughout the year, trustees have established
processes to ensure:

. The Trust explains to stakeholders our structure and purpose as one academy trust and is developing
clear meastrable commitments and KPis demonstrating our performance in enabling successful schools.

. Good communication and collaboration, with leaders from each school working together to support each
other.

. The development and the Trust operating model (now and in the future) is reviewed by exécutive and

non-executive leaders.
Education Standards

. Schools failing to make progress in closing gaps in opportunity, attainment and progress for
disadvantaged students and students with special educational needs and disabilities.

To address this risk and other educational risks identified throughout the year, trustees have established
processes to ensure:

. Our stated commitment to social mobility, social justice and inclusion is measured and monitored by
sschools, governors, the executive team and the trustee’s AIMS committee. '

. A robust performance management process in place for leaders and teachers which is clearly linked to
school performance and school iniprovement priorities

¢ Close analysis of student data in-year focused precisely on student groups to inform decision making

. Termly Quality Assurance and evaluation reporting to headteachers, governors, the CEO and Trustees
AIMS committee completed by the Executive Director for Education.

. A robust monitoring and i m-year evaluation of documented strategies for pupil premium, SEND and

COVID catch up.
Public Profile

This is critical as it ensures future (financial) viability of the schools in the Trust. Trustees monitor recruitment at
the appropriate admission points for each school, including the sixth form. Areas of focus include:

. Pupil and staff behaviour, forwhich the individua! schools' policies are key to managing this risk
. Publicity, which is closely monitored by the CEO, head teachers, Governors and Trustees
. Suitability of partnerships with other organisations which are closely ménitored by the Trustees

Safeguarding

The Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintdined in the areas of selection and
monitoring -of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health & safety and discipline. Each

school's Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) is responsible for:

Ensuring there are adequate systems in place for identifying and reporting on pupil wélfare and safety
Liaising with authorities to ensure that schools fulfil-their obligations for dealing with serious incidents
Planning, coordinating and organising training for staff and pupils.on safeguarding matters

Ensuring that parents are fully informed of arrangements (and of their own responsibilities) through the
individual schools' home school agreements

The Trust's Executive Director for Education is the Trust's lead for safeguarding. There is a nominated Trustee
for safeguarding.
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Finance

Government grants provide over 90% of the Trust's revenue funding. Other income comes from a variety of
sources such as catering, educational trips, materials for pupils, staff consulting and facilities lettings.

The Trust’s financial objectives are to manage its affairs to support the achievement of the overall strategic
objectives as set out in the Trustees' strategic plan. This covers both short-term and long-term planning,
managing revenues, costs, assets, liabilities, opportunities and risks to ensure the Trust remains in a good
financial position to deliver its planned activities. A new business planning process has been implemented in
2020 to ensure that strategic and school improvement priorities drive the financial strategy and investment plans
of the Trust over the short, medium and long term.

Increasing revenue and optimising value for money through pupil growth is a priority for the Trust, which is being
driven through:

. Increasing student numbers for 11-16 provision through capital expansion work. Both Queen Mary's

schools have been awarded Selective Schools Expansion funding and have increased their PAN's as a

~ result. The QMHS expansion project is extremely complex due to site constraints and Trustees have
earmarked £800,000 from reserves to enable this project, which is critical to facilitating the PAN increase
as added year groups progress through the key stages.

. Increasing 16 — 19 student numbers. The MAT block subjects enable the Trust to offer a broader
curriculum while managing efficiency of delivery. Retention of existing students is key for all schools as
well as increasing external recruitment. Student numbers have increased year on year, although
additional growth capacity remains.

. The development of the St Matthew's Campus (led by the Department for Education) providing the
permanent building for The Ladder School (alternative provision free school) providing places needed in
the borough. This site will also provide an additional extension building for Walsall Studio School, which
is co-located on the same site. Unfortunately, due to delays in planning and the impact of Covid, the DfE
has been delayed in delivering the new build. This is a significant risk to the Trust as it restricts pupil
capacity and ability to grow — particularly through the limitations of the Ladder School's temporary
accommodation.

. Trustees are also focused on increasing other revenues to reduce the impact of lower grant funding

There is a focus on driving value for money and managing costs to achieve savings where possible without
impacting on the effectiveness of provision of education. Where necessary the Trustees continue to approve
investment to do this - current examples include invest for enabling digital transformation and improvements to
trust wide central services and expertise.

Costs efficiencies have been achieved through economies of scale through Trust wide procurement activity and
this approach will accelerate in 2020/2021 years due to capacity and expertise added with the central finance
function. Spend is rigorously monitored against budgets to ensure adequate contro! of costs.

The Trust continues to embed and _evoive its use of Integrated Financial Planning and reviewing its activities
against other trusts and the sector to identify efficiency opportunities. Additional efficiencies are also driven
through increased collaborative working across the Trust.

Health & Safety

Trustees, Local Governors and staff are keenly aware of their responsibilities to ensure that Trust schools
provide a safe and comfortable place in which to study and work. The schools have a robust set of health &
safety procedures, and commission expert external advice through independent audits, focusing on different
areas, on a regular basis. Headteachers / Principals are responsible for Health and Safety in each school. Each
school has a nominated local governor for Health and Safety.
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Personnel

The success of the Trust is reliant on the quality -of its staff and so Trustees monitor and review policies and
procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear succession
planning. The Trustees oversee the management of a Trust-wide performance management system which
assesses staff performance and is linked to pay. Trustees appoint an independent advisor to review
performance and pay for the CEO. The CEO advises LGBs on decisions on individual school leadership team
payments and moderates recommendations from headteachers for staff across the Trust.

The Chairs of the LGBs, and the Headteachers in individual schools are responsible for managing change and
communication / dissemination of information to staff. Senior staff, governors and Trustees involved in staff
recruitment are trained in the safer recruitment of new staff.

Fraud, misuse of funds and safekeeping of assets

The Trust has a qualified CFO, supported by a suitably qualified finance team which is responsible for managing
finances. The Trust is robust in setting internal controls, are diligent in setting the Trust's budget and monitoring
performance closely. The Trustees agreed a programme of additional work with the auditors to review internal
controls and processes as required by the Academies’ Financial Handbook. This internal audit work includes
ensuring that the Trust's financial policies are adhered to. Reports are prepared for the Business, Audit & Risk
Committee, which fulfils the roie of Finance Committee and Audit Committee as described in the Academies
Financial Handbook. A separate Audit and Risk Committee has been established to commence from September
2020.

The Trustees also ensure that the Trust maintains insurance cover, including using the RPA scheme and are
advised by an independent broker and covering the main aspects of the Trust's operations and assets.

Fundraising activities/income generation

The schools within the Trust seek to increase revenues where possible. This includes the letting of sports and
building facilities to third parties. These arrangements are subject to checks on the third party including for
safeguarding, insurance and risk assessment activities. However, opportunities for such activities during
2019/20 have beeh severely limited since March 2020 due to the restrictions imposed due to Covid 19.

When supplying trips, materials or other activities to pupils, all schools consider whether charges can be made in
line with the charging and remissions policy. This includés -whether to request voluntary contributions from
parents to help fund activities. Such requests are clearly identified as voluntary contributions.

Queen Mary's Grammar School and Queen Mary’s High School both request voluntary donations towards wider
enrichment activities carried out by staff in these schools. Without these, it would be difficult to finance some of
the extra-curricular activities which take place outside of core education. Requests are made termly and are
clearly marked as voluntary. The Trust is very grateful for the generosity of parents who support the schools in
this way. The Trust operates a sensitive approach to fundraising from parents and there have been no
complaints. No external professional fundraising organisations were used. Several schools within the Trust also
have active parents' associations, who support activities and raise funds.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

UK energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions

The Trust is pleased to report its current UK based annual energy usage and associated annual greenhouse gas
(*GHG") emissions pursuant to the Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and
Carbon Report) Regulations 2018 (“the 2018 Regulations”) that came into force 1 April 2019,

Organisational boundary
In accordance with. the 2018 Regulations, the energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions are. for

those within the UK only for all assets that come under an operational control boundary. This includes ail 6
schools controlled during the reporting period.

Reporting period ) .
The annual reporting period is 1 September to 31 August each year and the. energy and carbon emissions are

aligned to this period.

Quantification and reporting methodology

This report was compiled independently by energy consultants Briar (Briar Consulting Engineers Limited). The
2019 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (revised edition) were followed to ensure the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

("SECR") requirements were met and exceeded where possible.

The energy data was collated using existing reporting mechanisms. These methodologies provided a near
continuous record of natural gas and electricity use. Transport data related to minibuses, site vehicles and grey

fleet has been estimated.

The energy data was converted to carbon emissions using the 2020 UK Government GHG Conversion Factors
for Company Reporting. The associated emissions are divided into the combustion of fuels and the operation of
facilities (scope 1), purchased electricity, heating and cooling (scope 2) and in-direct emissions that occur as a
consequence of company activities (scope 3).

Estimations

The electricity and natural gas consumption were compiled from invoices with a mix of estimated and actual
meter readings; there has been some pro-rating to adjust the available data to the reporting period. Transport
consumption is negligible, and the fuel purchases/mileage travelled has been estimated based on approximate
expenditure for the reference year.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continuéd)

Breakdown of energy consumption used to calculate

Year ended 31

emissions (kWh): August 2020
Natural gas 4,925,719
Electricity (grid) 1,733,892
School minibuses 57,924
Employee owned vehicles where company purchases the fuel 4,003
Site vehicles 742
Total gross energy consumed

6,722,281

‘Note: Figures may not sum to total due to rounding.

'Breakdown of emissions associated with the reported

Year ended 31

jenergy use (tCO2e) August 2020

.Scope 1

‘Natural gas 905.7

'School minibuses 15,

Site vehicles 0.2

Total Scope 1 920.9

iScope 2

'Electricity (grid) 404.2

'Total Scope 2 404.2

‘Scope 3

Employee owned vehicles where company purchases the fuel 1

.Total Scope 3 1
1326.1

‘Total gross emissions
]

?Note: Figures may not sum to total due to rounding..

Intensity Ratio 2
A0, i

The chosen primary iriténslty ratio is total gross emissions in metric
-tonnes COze (mandatory emissions) per pupil (based on the Autumn
;census), which is the recommended ratio for the sector. The Ladder
School is an alternative provision school! with a higher staff-to-puipil ratio! -
.compared to the sector as a whole and therefore it also translates into

higher tCO2e per pupil.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued)

]

fTonnes of CO2e per pupil Y:z;s:f 232::)1
‘Shire Oak Academy 0.244
,Queen Mary's Grammar School 0.29
fQueen Mary's High School 0.199
| Aldridge Schiool — A Science College 0.239
‘Walsall Studio School 0.247
‘The Ladder Schoo! 1.619
_All schools and transport 0.255

:Note: Figures may not sum to total due to fo_unding.

Energy efficiency action during current financial year
The management of resources and the need to embed sustainability is an important issue for the Trust and the
following actions related to reducing energy use were implemented within the current reporting period.

Energy consumption is expected to be below typical this year due to the reduced occupancy across all sites
following COVID-19 restrictions from 23rd March 2020. From this date, the schools were open to critical worker's
children only, with a phased and partial reopening for certain year groups occurring in June. During this
unprecedented time, the Trust has taken clear action to reduce energy waste across sites by running at partial
heating load to only heat parts of the school required for key worker's children; by draining swimming pools in
order to lower heating load and electricity consumption and by reducing lighting load in all areas not in use.

A further result of health precautions has been a greater implementation of video conferencing for staff and
board meetings, reducing the need for travel to ‘and between sites. The emission saving resulting from these
activities has not been quantified, but this practice has resulted in behaviour changes that are expected to
continue for the foreseeable future.

Outside of the COVID-19 response, actions this year have been limited to an ongoing project across all schools
to replace flucrescent lighting with efficient LED equivalents on a rolling basis and a project for roofing and
windows at Queen Mary's High School throughout which new double glazed window units were installed,
alongside with new roofing with efficient insulation capacity to reduce-the overall building heat loss.
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Plans for future periods
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The key objectives for the forthcoming year for the Trust include:

’ Embedding and accelerating the Trust's updated strategic plan and priorities including:
o] the digital transformation of teaching, learning and leadership practice
o the further development real-time management information to inform leadership decisions

. Further demonstrating our commitment to social mobility, socia! justice and inclusion including:

o improving outcomes for disadvantaged students, students with SEND, vulnerable students and
students with protected characteristics who may be more likely to face discrimination and
prejudice throughout their lives

o developing opportunities (including leadership development) particularly for those who may be
more likely to face discrimination and prejudice throughout their lives

(o} increasing numbers of non-executive leaders and governors from underrepresented groups

+ _ Developing and strengthening further the Trust's school improvement offer to all schools within the trust
(appropriate to the strengths and areas for improvement in each school) including:
o the work of lead practitioners directed by the director of school improvement
o further developing trust-wide CPD and career development opportunities

. Ensuring The Ladder School continues to be financially viable and is supported in preparations for its
first Ofsted inspection while in temporary accommodation.

. Ensuring a rigorous and professional approach to business and curriculum planning supported by
effective corporate support services throughout the Trust.

. Successfully managing capital build projects in each of the Trust's schools

. Implementing the Trust's plan for growth in size and significance through strategic relationships

Funds held as custodian

During the year ended 31 August 2020, thé Trust did not hold any funds as custodian trustee on behalf of any
other charitable organisation.

Agency arrangements

The Trust acts as an agent in distributing bursary funds and grants from the ESFA and other government bodies.
Payments received and subsequent disbursements to students. are excluded from the statement of financial
activities as the Trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. In some instances, the
Trust can use a percentage of the allocation towards its own administrative costs and this is recognised in the
statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid and any balances are disclosed in note 31.
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Disclosure of information to auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
there is-no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and

. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.
The Trustees' Report was approved. by order of the Board of Trustées, as the company directors, on 15

December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:.

(O L~ islijiote

William Hodson
Chair of Trustees



THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for.ensuring that The Mercian Trust ("The Trust”)
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, ‘and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to'the. CEO, :as accounting officer, for ensuring
financial controls canform with the requirements. of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements ‘and responsibilities assigned to it in the furiding agreement between The
Mercian Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of
Trustees any material weaknesses .or breakdowns in internal control.
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Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
-Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met 7 times:during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

William Hodson, Chair 7 7
Rebecca Hearsey 5 7
Kevin Davis 7 7
Jane Bonner 5 7
The Revd. Beverley Boden 6 7
Mark Harland 7 7
Paul Lee 6 7
Melanie Crooks 4 7
Eddie: Stride 3 7
Caroline Jobling 1 1
Roland Roberts 2 2

A Sub- Committee of Trustees was convened to deal with Related Party Transactions. There were 3 meetings.
Atteridance during the year at meetings was as follows:
Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
William Hodson
Melanie Crooks

Jane Bonner
Kevin Davis

= WN W
—_ W W

The Pay Committee was convened for a single meeting.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
‘William Hodson 1 1
Jane Bonner 1 1
‘Melanie Crooks 1 ’ C ‘ 1

The Trustees delegate responsibility for finance, audit and risk to the Business, Audit & Risk (BAR) Committee.
The BAR Committee has formally met three: times during the year ended 31 August 2020. The BAR Committee
formally met 3 times. * signifies'Non-Trustee Committee Mérriber.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:
Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Melanie Crooks (Chair)
Paul Lee )

The Revd. Bevérley Boden
Alex Lamb*

‘Stuart Roberts*

Jane Mole*

WWWN W W
W W WL W W
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

‘Governance (continued)

The AIMS Committee- was constituted at the start of 2019/20 to monitor Educational Performance across the
Tiust. It met on 5 occasions. Non- Trustéé members joined the Committee with effect from February 2020. *
signifies Non- Trustee Comimittee Member.

Attendance during. the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Jane Bonner (Chair)
William Hodson
Rebecca Hearsey
Timothy Lawrence*
Simon Dutton*

WWwH b
WWwomon»m

GOVERNANCE REVIEWS

The board of Trustees, having formed the Multi Academy Trust in January 2018 and undertaken associated
skills audits and governance planning processes, identified opportunities to further strengthen the effectiveness
of governance by co-opting new Trustees onto the board. This included new trustee appointments with
significant experience in financial governance as well as identified skills shortage areas (different school phases
and sectors).

The Trust's agreed framework for delivering Governance -across all levels of the Trust has been reviewed during
2020 with an update to the Scheme of Delegation and the establishment of 2 new committees (the Finance and
Resources Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee — these replace the Business and Risk Committee.
Our work to review and develop governance as ensured clear separation between strategic non-executive
oversight and operational. executive leadership, and between members and trustees and trustees and local
governing bodies.

Local governance arrangements were stréngthened at Shire Oak Academy with the formation of a Standards

- Board in January 2020. The standards board, in place until November 2020, was chaired by the CEO and was
formed of 3 members of the local governing body and 3 members of the Trust executive team. The standards
board met regularly throughout 3 terms to support the academy and hold leaders to account.in their work to lead
improvements in standards and student outcomes.

The Trust's Executive Director for Education reviews the effectiveness of local governance as part of the MAT-
wide school self-evaluation pracess (SEFs). Local governance has been quality-assured as part of the Trust's
QA activities which take place throughout the year.
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Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of
public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value

for money during the year by:

Improving Educational Outcomes
Resources are directed where they will be the most effective, for example:

. Monittoring and taking action on staffing levels and their efficient deployment, using tools such as ICFP
Schools Benchmarking and Schools Resources Management.

. Developing tracking systems to record and monitor all aspects of pupil data including attainment,
attendance and behavior.

. Using specific grants such as Pupil Premium to target additional funds to support to improve education
and social outcomes

. Coordinating continuing professional development training for staff and regularly trust-wide CPD

sessions to increase collaboration, efficiency of delivery and to encourage transfer of best practice and

team working
. Within existing budgets, Trust wide posts focus on areas for improving outcomes for students.

Financial Governance and Monitoring
Robust financial governance and management arrangements are in place across the Trust to deliver economies

and efficiencies, examples include:

. Establishing a Mercian Procurement Portal (The Mercian Shop) that enables coordinated purchasing
across the Trust to ensure best value for common products and commodities, including reducing
administration time in schools through combining orders etc.

. The Trust has further benefitted from purchasing as a Trust and making use of public sector framework
agreements, in areas such as energy-arrangements, IT systems and insurances so as to use funding
efficiently. The Trust has also procured educational resources in bulk orders to maximise discounts,
using public procurement networks such as YPO to benefit from competitive frameworks where
appropriate.

. Tendering Trust wide contracts for Grounds Maintenance and school uniforms has delivered better value
outcomes through economies of scale and improved services. Further Trust wide tenders are planned in
2020-21 for catering, cleaning and other areas where the Trust will benefit from economies of scale.
Work is also underway to establish professional MCIPS qualified procurement services and support to
develop a procurement strategy and delivery plan across the Trust and so as contracts in individual
academies fall due, Trust wide contracts will be negotiated, driving down the costs. of these contracts
whilst improving the services delivered. ,

. Increasing pupil growth.and capacity with expansion projects at QUGS and QMHS.

. Working collectively with three external selective schools and an exam board to secure a significant
reduction in the costs of operating a combined entrance examination for pupils entering grammar

schools in the area
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The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectivenéss. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact -should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Mercian Trust for the year 1 September
20189 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Trustees have reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed, together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. Trustees have implemented a
strategy to indicate how they are reassured that control measures are effective and the Chair of the Business,
Audit and Risk Committee is of the view that there was a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the Trust's significant risks in place for the year ended 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval
of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Trustees. The Trustees have
appointed Crowe UK LLP to undertake additional extended assurance work. From 2020/21, internal audit work
will be undertaken by a different provider in line with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook
2020.

The risk and control framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees

. Regular reviews by the relevant committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees employed Crowe UK LLP as internal auditor.

This role includes giving advice on financia! matters and performing a range of checks on the Trust's financial
systems, including visiting each of the schools in the Trust. This work is reported to the Business, Audit & Risk
Committee in 2019-20 (transferring to the Audit and Risk Committee from 2020-21) to which the Trustees have
delegated review of audit and risk responsibilities. No material issues arose from the checks. The areas tested
included:

Payroll procedures and controls

Review of working procedures and controls to ensure that census data claims are accurate
An analytical review of funding claims for each academy.

General financial procedures and compliance with policies and controls
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Review of efféctiveness
As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of intemnal control.

During the year in question the review has been informed by:,

Work of the Executive Team
Work of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and finance teams across the Trust

Extendeéd assurance reviews by the Trust's external auditors
Scrutiny of the Business, Audit & Risk Committee and Trustees

The financial management and governance self-assessment process v » -
The work of the Trust's external auditors in connection with their audit of the annual report and financial

statements and in management letters

During the year to 31 August 2020, the accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of
their review of the system of intemal control by the committee ‘and a plan to address weaknessés and ensure

continuous improvement of the system is-in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 15 December 2020 and signed on their behalf

by: .
l/\ C )
00 [ 15)11/2()20 [gj(zno&)
William Hodson Daniel Parkes
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer »



THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of The Mercian Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust board of
Trustees and the Education & :Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms .and conditions of all funding received by the Trust, unider the funding agreement in place
between the Trust-and the Secretary. of State for Education. As part of ry consideration [ ‘have had due regard to
the requiremients of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019:

I confirm that | and. the Trust board of Trustees are able to identify any material lrregular or impropér use -of all
funds by the Trust, or material non-compliancé with the terms-and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding

agreement and the Académies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that' no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or-funding.non-compliance have been discovered
to date: If any instances are identified after the date of this statément, these will be notified fo the board of

Trustees and ESFA.

Daniel Parkes
Accounting Officer
Date: 15 December 2020
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources .and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are

required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020:

o make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
. prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
20086. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the

purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 15 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

William Hodson
Chair of Trustees

W (o~
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
MERCIAN TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Mercian Trust (the ‘'trust’) for the year ended 31 August 2020
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the ‘Statement of Cash Flows and the
related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policieés. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with. the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We: believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in rélation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

. the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or ) . .
. the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statemeénts any identified matérial uncertainties that may

cast significant. doubt about the Trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
MERCIAN TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. Other information
includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report, and the
Governance Statement. Our -opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our.report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon,

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to detéermine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If; based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its. environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to repoit to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the acéounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
MERCIAN TRUST (CONTINUED)

Resporisibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities' Statement, the Trustees (who are aiso the directors of
the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine.is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of usérs taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditor's Report. )

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable Trust's
members those.matters we are required to state to them'in an Auditor's Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
Trust'and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
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U.C J e
Helen Drew (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalif of
Crowe UK. LLP

Statutory Auditor
Black Country House

Rounds Green Road

Oldbury-
West Midlands
B69 2DG

Date: 15 December 2020
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT-ON REGULARITY TO THE
MERCIAN TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23 July 2018 and further to the requirements of the
[Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by The Mercian Trust during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied
to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern

them.

This report is made solely to The Mercian Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Mercian Trust and ESFA those matters we
are required to state in a report and for no other purpose: To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Mercian Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Mercian Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Mercian Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 27 May 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1
September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or-that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement i more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes a review of the design and implementation of the
Academy Trust's internal controls. and review processes on regularity, supported by detailed tests on samples of
costs incurred by the Academy Trust and specific transactions indentified from .our review.
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Conclusion

In the course: of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all mat’e‘ri_al respects the
expenditure disbursed and income: received during thé year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities. which
.govern them.

C owe . /< Lc/’
‘Crowe UK. LLP

Statutéry Auditor

Date: 15 December 2020
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
~ FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

A Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Note £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital
grants 3 67,061 - 1,477,697 1,544,758 4,569,652
Charitable activites 4 1,248,830 29,467,789 - 30,716,619 29,799,221
Other trading activities 5 214,159 - s 214,159 290,676
Investments 6 7,285 - - 7,285 5171
Total income 1,637,335 29,467,789 1,477,697 32,482,821 34,664,720
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 43,810 - - 43,810 32,139
Charitable activities 1,354,311 30,465,606 1,729,556 33,549,473 33,825,905
Total expenditure 7 1,398,121 30,465,606 1,729,656 33,593,283 33,858,044
Net ; -
income/(expenditure) 139,214 (997,817) (251,859)  (1,110,462) 806,676
Transfers between
funds 20 70,010 338,650 {(408,660) - -
Net movemerit in
funds before other
recognised ;
gaing /(losses) ‘209,224 " (659,167) (660,519) (1,110,462) 806,676
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit pension .
schemes 27 - (2,031,000) - {2,031,000) (1,577,000)
:.l‘;‘d':“e'"e"‘ n 209,224  (2,690,167) (660,519)  (3,141,462) (770,324)
Reconciliation of ) o '
funds:
Total funds brought
forward 2,143,094 (9,645,818) 68,781,212 61,278,488 62,048,812
Net movement in funds 209,224 (2,690,167) (660,519) (3,141,462) (770,324)
Total funds carried 2,352,318 (12,335,985) 68,120,693 58,137,026 61,278,488

forward

Page 43



THE MERCIAN TRUST
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED .31 AUGUST 2020

The Statement of Financial Acfivities includes all gains and losses.recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 48 to 82 form part of these financial statements.
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REGISTERED NUMBER: 07611347

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

) 2020
Note £
Fixed assets )
Intarigible assets 14 37,330
Tangible assets. 15 63,608,744
63,646,074
Current assets ‘
Stocks 16’ 41,167
Debtors 17 3,132,169
Cash at bank and in hand 7,899,073
11,072,399
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 18 (2,942,141)
Net current assets 8,130,258
Total assets less current liabilities 71,776,332
Creditors: amounts falling due after more , )
than one year 19 ’ (45,306)
Net assets excluding pension liability 74,731,026
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 27 {13,594,000)
Total net assets 58,137,026

44,958
4,260,461
5,961,610

10,267,029

(1,987,738)

2019
£

61,918
64,507,769

64,569,687

8,279,291

72,848,978

(59,490)

72,789,488
(11,511,000)

61,278,488
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THE MERCIAN TRUST

{A Company Limited by Guarsmbe)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07611347

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

2020 2019

Note £ £
Furds of the Trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 20 68,120,693 68,781,212
Restricted income funds 20 1,258,015 1,865,182
Pension reserve 20 ~ (13,594,000) (11,511,000)
Total restricted funds . 55,784,708 59,135,394
Unrestricted income funds 20 2,352,318 2,143,094
Total funds 58,137,026 61,278,488

The financial statements on pages 43 to 82 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 15
December 2020 and are signed on their behalf, by:

QO L~ 1$hjeezo

William Hodson
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 48 to 82 form part of these financial statements.



THE?MERCIAN'TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantée)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

. Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 22
Cash flows from investing activities 24
Cash flows from financing activities 23
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash .and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 25,26

The notes on pages 48 to 82 form part of these financial statements

2020 2019
£

1,488,604  (2,643,322)
463,582 2,307,282
(14,723) 46,139

1,937,463 (289,901)

5,961,610 6,251,511

7,899,073 5,961,610
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

A summary of thé principal accounting pohcxes adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of thé Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accountlng and Reportmg by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their.accounts in accordarce
with the Financial Reporting Standard .applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 20719 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties relatéd to events or conditions that may ¢ast significant doubt on the ability of
the Trust'to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period
of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements, and have
factored in the financial and operational impact of COVID-19 on the Trust, and have concluded that
the Trust has adequate resourcés to continué in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

1.3

1.4

Accounting policies (continued)

Income

All ihcoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on. a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet, Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as

a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are récognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognlsed on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classifiéd by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly

.to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are

not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities . .
These are costs incurred on the Trust's éducatidnai operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.5 lulanyible assets

1.6

Intangible assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic
benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible .assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of
amortisation and any provision for impairment.

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset.on
a straight-line basis over its expected usefui life.

The estimated useful lives :are as follows:
Amortisation is provided on the following basis:

Software - 3 years
Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
‘Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all' tangible fixed assets other than. freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates .calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a basis over its expected
useful life, as follows:

The estimated useful lives range as. follows:

Freehold property - 50 years

Lorig-term leasehold property - 50 - 125 years
Assets under construction - not depreciated until in use
Plant and Machinery - 3 - 10 years

Assets in the course of construction are |nc|uded at cost. Deprecnatton on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Accounting policieé (continued)

1.7 Interest receivable

1.8

1.9

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when recéivablé and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution
with whom the funds are deposited.

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount'after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.11 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment incorne, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

1.12 Cash at bankand in hand

‘Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
‘of three months or less from the date of acquisition 6r opening of thé deposit or similar account,

1.13 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obllgation at the Balance Sheet date as a result-of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has recelved as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.14 Financial instruments

The Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS: 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities. of the Trust and their measurement bases are :as follows:

Financial assets - trade and othér debtors are basic financial iRstruinents and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the Trust's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment. Cash
at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

‘Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade créditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 18 and 19. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken
place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.15 Taxation

The Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 ‘of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes. ’
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Accounting policies (continued)

1.16 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions ‘are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Govemment Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations usirig a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no. underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at
each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs
and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are
included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value
of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return
on the scheme assets is recognised in other récognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.17 Agency arrangements

The charitable company acts as an agent in distributing bursary funds and grants from the ESFA and
other government bodies. Payments received and subsequent disbursements to students are
excluded from the Statement of financial activities as the Trust does not have contro! over the
charitable application of the funds. In some instances the Trust can use a percentage of the
allocation towards iits own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial
activities. The funds received and pad and.any balances held are disclosed in note 31
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments aré continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trust trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the, related actual results. The estimatés and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts. of
assets and liabilitiés within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis. using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the camying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a- full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension iability.

. The Trustees have exercised judgement in estimating the expected useful life of the School's leasehold
buildiiigs and other fixed assets. These estimates are then usd to calculate the depreciation cost of the

assets.
Critical areas of judgment:

There are no critical judgements which would have a material impact on the financial statements:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

income from donations and capital grants

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed assét Total

funds funds funds funds

2020. 2020 2020 2020

£ £ £ £

Donations 67,061 - = 67,061
Capital Grants - - 1,477,697 1,477,697
67,061 - 1,477,697 1,644,758

Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019
£ ‘ £ £ £
Donations 64,257 (60,000) - 4,257
Capital Grants. - - 4,565,395 4,565,395
64,257 (60,000} 4,565,395 4,569,652
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THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Funding for the Trust's educational opefations

Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds: funds funds
2020. 2020 2020
£ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 27,054,853 27,054,853
Other DfE/ESFA Grants - 1,319,795 1,319,795
- 28374648 28,374,648
Other Government Grants
Local Authority Grants - 620,636 620,636
- 620,636 620,636
Other incoming resources
Catering Income 610,685 - 610,685
School Fund 472,649 - 472,649
Other Income 165,496 417,115 582,611
1,248,830 417,115 1,665,945
Exceptional government funding
Coronavirus Exceptional Support - 55,390 55,390
- 55390 55,390
1,248,830 29,467,789 30,716,619

The Academy Trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in the year from Government support
scheme in response to the Coronavirus outbreak (COVID-19). The funding reéceived. is shown above

uhder Exceptional Government Funding.

The funding, received for Coronavirus excepti_onal support covers £55,390 of costs the Academy Trust
bore up-to July 2020 as a result of the virus. This predominantly related to the provision of online fearning
and enhancéd hygine solution costs in line with Government gurdance for. openlng and operation, of

schools during the pandemic.

During the year no staff were furloughed under the Governmiénts CorOnavirus Job Retehtfion ‘Scheme

(CJRS).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Funding for the Trust's educational operations (cohtinued)

Unrestricted

Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019
£ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants.
General Anniial Grant (GAG) - 25113474 25,113,474
‘Other DfE/ESFA Grants - 1,694,562 1,594,562
- 26,708,036 26,708,036
Other Government Grants
Local Authérity Grants . 415,103 415,103
_ - 415103 415103
Other Incoming Resources
Catering Income 890,953 . - 890,953
School Funds. 877,666 - 877,666
Other Income 15,350 892,113 907,463
1,783,969 892113 2,676,082
1,783,969 28015252 29,799,221
Income from other trading activities
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2020 2020
£ £
School Uniform Sales 60,109 60,109
Staff Catering 10782 10,782
Léttings Income 74,288 74,288
Music Income 68,980 68,980
214,159 214,159
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Incoine from other trading activities (continuéd)

‘School Uniform Sales
Staff Catering
Lettings Income
‘Music Income

Investment income

Investment Income

Investment Income

Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2019 2019
£ £
40,441 40,441
20,122 20,122
113,396 113,396
116,717 116,717
290,676 290,676
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2020 2020
£ £

7,285 7,285
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2019 2019
£ £

5171

5,171
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NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Expenditure:

Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:

Direct costs

Funding for educationa!l operations:
Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:

Direct costs

Funding for educational operations:
Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Analysis of siipport costs

Wages and. Salaries
Premises Costs
Governance Costs
Other Support Costs

Staff Costs  Premises Other Total
2020 2020 2020 2020

£ £ £ £

- - 43,810 43,810
21437781 1,704,968 2,559,454 25,702,203
4,162,534 2337241 1,347,495 17,847,270
25,600,315 4,042,209 3950759 33,593,283
Staff Costs Premises Other Total
- 2019 2019 2019 2019

£ £ £ £

. - 32,139 32,139
20,093,315 1,696,577 3,278,637 25068,529
3,745,553 3,489,607 1,522,216 8,757,376
23,836,868  57186,184 4,832,992 33,858,044
Education. Total

operations funds:

2020 2020

£ £

4,162,534 4,162,534

2,337,241 2,337,241

196,128 196,128

1,161,367 1,151,367

7847270 7,847,270
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Analysis of support costs (continued)

Analysis of support costs (continued)

‘Wéges and Salaries:
Premises Costs
Goverfnance Costs
Other support costs

Net incomel/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
‘Operating lease rentals

Fees paid to auditor for:

-.audit

- other services

Education Total
operations. funds:
2019 2019

£ £
3,745,553 3,745,553
3,489,607 - 3,489,607
60,797 60,797
1,461,419 1,461,419
8757,376 8,757,376
2020 2019

£ : £
1,704,968 1,696,579
24,588 9,908
22,390 32,069
23,400 22,725
20,302 16,545
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10,

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments

b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

2020 2019

£ £
18,443,805 17,296,625
1,862,261 1,758,504
4,764,992 4,035,511
25,071,058 23,090,640
479,257 745,614
50,000 2,614
25,600,315 23,838,868
$0,000 2,614

Two compensatory payments wé made to6 employees in the 2019/2020 financial year totalling £50,000
(2019: one payment of £2,614). Individually the payments were- £30,000 authorised 4. March 2020 and
£20,000 authorised 18 May 2020. Each payment was duly authorised by Trustees as per requirements of

the Academies Financial Handbook.

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:

Teachers
Adminstration and suppoit
Management:

2020 2019
No. No.
347 329 -
273 258

32 35
652 622
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10.

Staff (continued)

d. Higher paid staff

The number of -employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension: costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2020 2019
I the band £60,001 - £70,000 9 6
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 7 4
In the band.£80,001 - £90,000 2 4
In the:band.£90,001 - £100,000 1 2
in the band £100,001 - £410,000 1 1
in the band £110,001 --£120,000 1 -
- 1

In the band £120,001 - £130,000

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust .comprise the Trustees and the .senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) réceived by key management. personnel for their services to
the Trust was £1,069,670 (2019: £953,001). .
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1.

12,

Central services

The Trust has provided the following central sefvices to its acadeinies during the year:

Strategic. diréction and coordination of activities

School Improvement including access to a trained Ofsted Lead inspector

Central financial services including Financial policy and management, Statutory accounting and
returns, Strategic financial planning, Financial management advice and support, Transactional

‘procurement, creditor management, payroll.
Central IT services

Coordination of a Trust-wide approach to GDPR compliance

Tax advice

Programmes of trust-wide developed CPD and initial teacher training
Insurance advisory and broking, claims management

Estates project management and advice

HR advice ’

Annual external audit, pension valuations and extended audit assurance
Other ediicational services organised centrally by the Trust

Additional resources to schools for SEND and social mobility

The Trust charged for the services by means of a “top slice approach”. In the current year the Trust
charged 5% of grant income. This fee was charged for the full 12 months.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

Aldridge School 4 374,295 370,848
Queen Maryé Grammar School 258,102 236,558
Queen Marys High School 181,264 181,577
Shire Oak Academy 362,248 357,224
Walsall Studio School ' 88,157 81,595
The Ladder School 38,474 13,768

Total

1,302,540 1,241,570

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

During the year, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2019 - £NIL).

During the. year ended 31 August 2020, no travel and subsistence expenses (2019: £241) were
remimbursed to any Trustees (2019; one Trustee),
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Trustees" and Officers' insurance

The Trust has. opted into the Deparitment of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative
to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees ‘and
officers from claims arlsmg from. negligent .acts, errors or -omissions occumng whilst on academy
business, and prov:des cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to .quaritify. the Trustees' and officers
indemnity lement from the overall cost of the. RPA scheme membership.

Intangible assets

Software
£

Cost
At 1 September 2019 84,570
At 31 August 2020 - ' 84,570
Amortisation
At 1 September 2019 22,652
Charge for the year 24,588
At 31 August 2020 47,240
Net book value
At 31 August 2020 _ , ' 37,330
At 31 August 2019 61,918
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15.

16.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2019

.Additions

At 31 August 2020

Depreciation

At 1 September 2019
Charge for the year
At 31 August 2020
Net book.value

At 31 Augiist 2020

At31‘August 2019

Stocks

‘ Long-term Assets

Freehold  leasehold under Plant and
property property -construction Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
46,355,808 20,705,677 43,392 2,941,448 70,046,325
233,145 18,278 491,327 63,193 805,943
46,588,953 20,723,955 534,719 3,004,641 70,852,268
1,190,268 2,694,520 - 1,663,768 .- 5,538,556
719,406 506,332 - 479,230 1,704,968
1,909,674 3,200,852 - 2,132,998 7,243,524
44,679,279 17,523,103 534,719 871,643 63,608,744
45,165,540 18,011,157 43,392 1,287,680 64,507,769
2020 2019
£ £
41,167 44,958

Finished goods and goods for resale
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17.

18.

Debtors

Due within one year
Trade debtors,
Other debtors:

~ Prepayments and accrued income:

Tax recoverable

Creditors: Amounts falling dué within one year

Other loans

Trade creditors

‘Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred incomeé at 1 Septembér- 2019
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

2020 2019

£ £

' 62,778 66,630
209 809
2,729,856 3,706,942
339,316 486,080
3,132,159 4,260,467
2020 2019

£ £

14,185 14,184
513,736 2,664
452,942 426,182
816,558 125,697
1,144,720 1,419,011
2,942,141 1,987,738
2020 2019

£ £
426,875 355,480
273,407 426,875
(426,875) (355,480)
273,407 426,875

Deferred income relates to amounts of funding received, or recogriised by thé: Trust that eXpIicitly‘ relate to

future periods.
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19.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2020 2019
. £ £
othér ioans ' 45,306 59,490

Other loans includes £14,185 (2019: £14,184) falling within one year.and £45,306 (2019: £59,490) falling
due after more than one year for the balance of three Salix loans-and one CIF loan.

The total amounts advanced as Salix loans was £30,880. These loans. are interest free, unsecured and
repayable in equal annual installments of £3,860 over a period of eight years.

The total amounts advanced as CIF Ioahs was £50,000. This |6an is charged at an interést rate of 1.7%, is
unsecured-and repayable in equal maonthly installments of £860 over a period .of five years..
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Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers ~ Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 2,143,094 1,537,335  (1,398,121) 70,010 - 2,352,318
‘Restricted
general funds
General Annual .
Grant (GAG) 1,611,044 27,054,853 (28,000,670) 338,650 - 1,003,877
Other DfE/ESFA .
grants - 1,375,185  (1,375,185) - - -
Other incoming
resources - 1,037,751 {1,037,751) - - -
Sports reserve 254,138 - - - - 254,138
Pension reserve  (11,511,000) - (52,000) - (2,031,000) (13,594,000)

(9,645,818) 29,467,789 (30,465,606) 338,650  (2,031,000) (12,335,985)

Restricted fixed

asset funds

DfE/ESFA :

capital grants 10,091,509 1,477,697 - (408,660) . . - 11,160,546

Voluntary capital _

income 9,907,465 - : - - 9,907,465

Capital ‘

donations from ‘

private sector 1,167,599 - - - - 1,167,599

Depreciation (5,561,207). - (1,729,556) - - (7,290,763)

Donations on

transfer 53,175,846 - - - - 53,175,846
68,781,212 1,477,697 (1,729,556) = (408,660) - 68,120,693

Total Restricted |

funds 59,135,394 30,945,486 (32,195,162) (70,010) (2,031,000) 55,784,708

Total funds 61,278,488 32,482,821 (33,593,283) - (2,031,000) 58,137,026
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20.

Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the fuhds are to be applied are as follows:
Fund descriptions:

Unrestricted funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds recevied and include grants from the
Department for Education (DfE)/Educational and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed
by the Department of Education wheré the asset acquired or creates is held for a specific purpose.

Transfers between funds relate to amounts utilised from restricted DfE/ESFA revenue grants which have
been been used for the acquisition of fixed assets.

The excess of restricted fixed asset funds over the total net book value of fixed assets represents capital
monies not yet spent. At 31 August 2020 this amounted to £4,474,619 (2019: 4,211,525).

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows;

2020 2019

£ £

Aldridge School! 1,119,731 1,228,792
Aldridge School Sports Regime 254,138 254,138
Queens Mary's Grammar School » 1,134,933 998,287
Queen Mary's High School 431,265 472,189
Shire. Oak Academy ] 528,575 785,238
Walsall Studio School 201,842 141,941
The Mercian Trust (209,611) 83,756
The Ladder School, ’ 149,460 43,935
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve . 3,610,333 4,008,276
Restricted fixed asset fund 68,120,693 68,781,212
Pension reserve (13,594,000) (71,511,000)
Total 58,137,026 61,278,488
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20.

Statément of funds (continued)
The following academy is cartying a net deficit on its portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit
£

The Mercian Trust (209,611)

The Trust is taking the following action to return the academy to surplus:

The deficit shown is not for an Academy within the Trust, it is for the central team functions.and priorities.
The deficit was planned and. is a ‘pump prime investment’, funded through reserves, to develop .school

improvement and innovation. The ‘strategic investment is to support Trust:wide priorities for increasing

opportunities.and improving outcomes for students.
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20.

Stétement of funds. (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
~and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2020
£ £ £ £
Aldridge School 6,216,721 638,539 348,496 1,475,806 8,679,562
Queens Mary's Grammar
School 3,712,502 637,253 407,692 1,207,759 5,965,206
Queen Mary's High School 2,854,975 442,300 279,874 653,163 4,230,312
Shire Oak Academy 6,409,372 1,010,181 297,093 828,437 8,545,083
Walsall Studio School 1,275,705 149,369 56,825 280,609 1,762,508
The Mercian Trust 296,261 1,081,430 6,568 273,296 1,657,555
The Ladder School 672,245 161,462 18,845 163,637 996,089
Trust 21,437,781 4,110,534 1,415,393 4,872,607 31,836,315
Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:
Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support staff support staff  Educational excluding Total
costs costs supplies  depreciation 2019
£ £ £ £ £
Aldridge School 6,007,742 852,133 461,476 1,706,336 9,027,687
Queens Mary's Grammar" .
School 3,507,486 733,599 508,132 1,533,571 6,282,788
Queen Mary's High School 2,667,822 532,222, 426,331 1,518,335  5144,710
Shire Oak Academy 6,030,938 1,241,417 512,180 846,622 8,631,157
Walsall Studio School 1,289,450 160,250 74,602 337,824 1,862,126
The Mercian Trust 247,816 137,057 23,287 209,762 617,922
The Ladder School 342,061 88,875 17,270 116,516 564,722
Trust 20,093,315 3,745,553 2,023,278 6,268,966 32,131,112
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20.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds

Restricted
general funds

General Annual
Grant (GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA
grants

Other incoming
resources

Sports reserve
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed
asset funds

DfE/ESFA
‘capital grants
Voluntary capital
income

Capital
donations from
private sector
Depreciation

Donations on
transfer

Total Restricted
funds

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
2,253,006 2,143,607  (1,844,030) (409,489) - 2,143,094
1,424,336 25,098,196 (26,221,773) 1,310,285 - 1,611,044
- 1,594,562  (1,594,562) - - -
- 1,322,960  (1,322,960) - - -
357,372 - (103,234) - - 254,138
(8,809,000) (60,000) (1,065,000) - (1,677,000) (11,511,000)
‘ (7,027,292) 27,955,718 (30,307,529) = 1,310,285 (1,577,000) (9,645,818)
6,426,910 4,565,395 - (900,796) - 10,091,509
9,907,465 - - - - 9,907,465
1,167,599 - - - - 1,167,599
(3,854,722) - (1,706,485) - - (5,561,207)
53,175,846 - - - - 53,175,846
66,823,008 4,565,395  (1,706,485) (900,796) = 68,781,212
59,795,806 32,521,113 (32,014,014) 59,135,394

409,489  (1,577,000)
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Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at ) Balance at

1 September Transfers Gainsy 31 August

2018 Income. Expenditure infout (Losses) 2019

£ £ £ £ £ £

Total funds 62,048,812 34,664,720 (33,858,044) - (1,577,000) 61,278,488

-Analysis‘ of net assets between.funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current period

‘ Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds. funds funds

2020 2020 2020 2020

£ .. £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 63,608,744 63,608,744

Intangiblé fixed assets - - 37,330 37,330
Current assets 2,352,318 4245462 4474619 11,072,399
Creditors due within one year - (2,942,141) - (2,942,141)
Creditors due in more than .one year - (45,306) - (45,306)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (13,594,000) - (13,594,000)
Total A 2,352,318 '(-12,335,9485) 68,120,693 58,137,026

Analysis of net-assets between funds - prior period
Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds funds: - - - funds funds

2019 2019 2019 2019

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 64507769 64,507,769
" Intangible fixed-assets - - 61,918 61,918
Current assets 2,143,094 3,912410- 4,211,525 10,267,029
Creditors due within one year - (1,987,738) - (1,987,738)
Creditors due in.more than one year - (59,490) - (59,490)

Provisions for liabilities-and charges - (11,511,000) - (11,511,000)

Total 2,143,094 (9,645818) 68,781,212 61,278,488
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22

23.

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities

2020 2019
£ £

Net (expenditure)fincome for the period (as pér Statément of Financial ’
Activities) : : (1,110,462) 806,676
Adjustments for:
Depreciation charges . 1,704,968 1,696,579
Amortisation charges . 24,588 9,908
Bank interest (7,285) (5171)
Decrease/(increase)_ih stocks 3,791 7.824
Increase in debtors 1,385,534  (1,285,523)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors _ 913,167 (433,220)
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,477,697) (4,565,395)
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation transferred from academies - 60,000
Defined benéfit pension scheme ¢ost less contributions payable (153,000) 836,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 205,000 .229,000
Net cash provided by/(used.in) operating activities 1,488,604 (2,643,322
Cash flows fromfinancing activities

2020 2019

£ £
Cash inflows from iew borrowing ‘ = 50,000
Repayments of borrowing (14,723) (3,861)
46,139

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (14,723)

Page 74



THE MERCIAN TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

24.

25,

26

‘Cash flows from investing activities

2020

2019
£ £
Bank interest 7,824 5,171
Purchase of intangible assets. - (58,184)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (805,943) (2,214,746)
Capital grants from the DfE and ESFA 1,261,701 4,565,395
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . 9,646
Net cash provided by investing activities 463,582, 2,307,282
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2020 - 2019
£ £
Cashin hand 7,899,073 5,961,610
Total cash and cash equivalents 7,899,073 5,961,610
Analysis of changes.in net debt
At1 Other non-
September cash At 31
2019 Cash flows changes August 2020
£ £ £ £
Cash at bank and in hard 5,961,610 1,937,463 7,899,073
Debt due within 1 year (14,184) 14,183 (14,184) (14,185)
Debt due after 1 year (59,490) - 14,184 (45,306)
5;887-,,936 1,951,646 - . . 7,839,582
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27.

Pension commitments

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension scheres: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-téaching staff, which is managed by West Midlands Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019,

Contributions amounting to £458,682 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2079 - £NIL) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currentiy in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million &nd notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of retumn is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%. :

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
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27.

‘Pension commitments (continued)
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £3,117,640 (2019 - £2,078,517).

A copy of the valuation repert and suppomng documentation .is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://wwwv.teacherspensions.co. uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensnons-valuatlon report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The
Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contributiori made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £946,845 (2019 -
£1,095,772), of which employer's contributions totalled £723,350 (2019 - £890,561) and employees’
contributions totalled £ 223,495 (2019 - £205,211). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.7
per cent for employers and between 5.5 and 8.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Trust, who were the employees
transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were eligible to,
and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on
conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predécessor school and the Trust at the
balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2020 2019

% %

Rate of increase in salaries : 3.25 3.70
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.25 2.20
Discourit rate for scheme liabilities 1.60 1.85
Inflation éssumption (cPy) 2.25 2.20

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements in monallty rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
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217.

Pension commitments (continued)

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring-in 20 years:
Males

Females

Serisitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%
Discount rate -0.1%
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality-assumption - 1 year decrease

Share of scheme assets.

The Titist's share of the assets in the scheme was;

Equities

Gilts

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and otherliquid assets
Other

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme-assets was £884,000 (2019 - £500,000).

2020 2019
Years Years
21.9 20:9
24.1 23.2
23.8 22.6.
26.0 25.1
2020 2019
£000 £000
(57,000) (837,000)
58,000 43,000
71,000 364,000
69,000 1,138,000
2020 2019
£ £
6,355,000 5,132,000
1,227,000 808,000
439,000 323,000
853,000 697,000
750,000 308,000
1,688,000 7,267,000
8,535,000

11,312,000
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27.

Pension commitrients (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2020 2019
£ £
Current service cost ' 1,305,000 1,173,000
Interast incorné 200,000 206,000
Administrative expenses 5,000 5,000
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities 1,510,000 1,384,000
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were-as follows:
2020 2019
£ £
At 1 September : 20,046,000 15,988 000
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust B 163,000
‘Current service cost 1,305,000 1,593,000
Interest cost 371,000 427,000
Employee contributions 193,000 243,000
Actuarial losses 3,471,000 - 1,875,000
Benefits paid. (180,000) (243,000)
At 31 August ‘ 24,906,000 20,046,000
Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2020 2019
. £ £
At 1 September 8,535,000 7,179,000
Conversion of academy trusts - 103,000
Interest income- 171,000 202,000
Actuarial gains 1,140,000 298,000
Employer contributions 1,458,000 757,000
Employee contributions 193,000 243,000
Benefits paid (180,000) (243,000)
Administration expenses (5,000) (4,000)
At 31 August 1 1,31 2',0‘00 8,535,000
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29,

30.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2020 the Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

Not later than 1 year 12,197 22,390
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4.211 13,410
16,408 35,800

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before he/she ceases to be a member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

As stated in the Trustees’ report above, the Trust has a number of transactions with related parties.
Details are set out below. Please note that the Trustees' report also provides additional information on the

nature of the relationship with each of the related parties.

Queen Mary's Schools Foundation

During the year, the Trust received donations from The Foundation relating to running the entrance tests
for Queen Mary's Grammar School and-Queen Mary's High School, as well as donations from parents for
enrichment activities. The total value of this income from donations was £64,488 (2019: £55,061).

The Fouridation owns the freehold land for both Queen Mary's school sites, let at a peppercorn rent to the.
Trust under a 125-year lease for the main sites and 10-year leases for playing fields.

Vine Trust Walsall

Vine Trust Walsall is a charitable Trust that is actively engaged in economic and social regeneration. The
Trust is structured to run an inclusive mix of services and facilities, which respond to the needs of the
communities it serves, with a Christian Ethos as the cornerstone. Vine Trust Walsall is a related party as
it can appoint members and Trustees of the trust as described in the Trustees report.
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30.

Related party transactions (continued) .
Vine Trust was instrumental in founding ‘Walsall Studio School including providing buildings in which the
school operates. Initially the school operated from the ground and second floors of-the Goldmine Centre:

This was subject to a 125 year lease at a peppercorn rental, approved by the ESFA when the school was
founded in 2013.

The long term plan, agreed with the ESFA, is to expand the Goldmine Centre (the main building) in
conjunction with development of The Ladder School.

In September 2019 the ESFA acquired the Goldmine Centre from Vine Trust Walsall and The Trust
entered into a new 125-year lease with the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government,

Vine Trust Walsall has provided catering provision to students at Walsall Studio School during the year.

Charges from Vine Trust Walsall during the year were:

Year Year |
ended ended

Nature of Service 3
August| 31-Aug-19

_ 2020
Services £ £
Staff costs 14,360
Property Service charge including staff costs 82,918
Catering and education support 11,265 16,635
Subtotal services 11,265 113,913
Rent / licence fees — 33 Lower Hall Lane 24
Rent/licence fees — Goldmine Centre Auditorium/1* floor 78,000
Subtotal rents / licence fees 102,000
Total ‘ ' . 11,265] 215,913

PTP Training Ltd ("PTP")

Based in Walsall, PTP has been providing training to companies and schools thought the Midlands for
over 40 years. PTP was graded as ‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted for partnership engagement. PTP offer a wide
range of services including:

. Apprenticeships support for employers on how to make the most of the apprenticeship levy/funding
. Traineeships through a variety of skills:
. Support for schools, including careers guidance, vocational qualifications and training for staff.

PTP is a subsidiary of Walsall Business Services Ltd a company limited by guarantee (formerly known as
The East Mercia Chamber of Commerce and industry and Walsall Chamber of Commerce). Until 4th May
2020 a member of the Trust was a member of Walsall Business Services and director of both Walsall
Business Services and PTP. A trustee of the Trust was also a director of PTP until 4th May 2020.
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30.

31.

Related party transactions (continued)

All apprenticeship training providers are approved by the ESFA, which determines a maximum cap that
can be funded. PTP charges the Trust for this service in accordance with the rates approved by-the

ESFA and this is paid from the Trust's levy account.

Payments made to PTP during the year ended 31 August 2020 via the levy account amounted to £27,165
(2019 £21,723)

In prior years Walsall Studio School aiso used PTP for Education support. This support has now ceased
(2019: £27,497)

Farchynys Estate Management Ltd ("FEML")

As described in the Trustees' report, The Trust has the benefit of using a residential centre in Wales,
which is owned by a group of old boys of that School, The Foundation and the Old Boys' Scholarship
Fund. The estate is run by Farchynys Estate Management Ltd a company establishéd by the owners to
manage the properties.

FEML is a related party for The Mercian Trust by virtue of the fact that:
. The Foundation is a member of the Mercian Trust (and OBSF is a linked charity of the Foundation)

. One of the five directors of FEML is the spouse of a Trustee of the Mercian Trust

During the year FEML charges parents and others directly for board and lodging, except for the Queen
Mary's Grammar School Year 7 residential week, and two visits from other schools in the Trust. The cost
of a Year 7 residential trip, which parents pay to the Trust is £160 per pupil per week (including food and
activities). The Trust pays FEML £120 per pupil per week towards the cost of maintenance of the centre.
Trips to commercially run residential centres usually cost between £400 to £500 per pupil per week.

In ‘accordance with the service level agreement The Trust paid the total amount of £33,000 in the year
ended 31 August 2020 (2019: £18,000) to cover the costs of running and maintenance of the educational
part of the estate. £18,000 was paid as part of the prior year service level agreement and a new service
level agreement was agreed during 2019/20. The costs included within this years accounts for the new
service level agreement was £13,750. Under the terms and conditions of the SLA a credit of £6,000 has
been accounted for as costs for the running and maintenance of the educational part of the estate was
below the full value of the SLA.

Agency arrangements

The Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2019 the Trust received £85,537 and disbursed £68,237 frrom the fund in addition to the
Trust's cost of administering the fund of £4,277. An amount of £88,804 (2019: 75,781) is included in other

creditors relating to undistributed funds that is repayable to the ESFA.
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